
 

 

Lexington Center Corporation 
Senior Managing Underwriter RFP dated January 20, 2017 

RFP Question Response 
 
The Lexington Center Corporation has received the following questions from prospective respondents to 
the Request for Proposal issued January 20, 2017, which were due February 1, 2017. Questions have 
generally been grouped together where practical with a response in blue in an attempt to reduce 
redundancy.  
 
1. (And) we noted the RFP is due on Feb. 20 which is President’s Day.  Just making sure everyone is open 

that day? 
 
Lexington Center Corporation offices are open on President’s Day February 20th. 
 

2. What shall we assume as the final maturity for the proposed financing (I.e., 20 years, 25, 30)? 
3. Final Maturity: What is LCC’s desired maximum final maturity for the transaction? Nov 1, 2047?   
 

For purposes of your response, please assume a 30-year amortization with a November 1, 2047 
maturity date. 
 

4. Is LFUCG willing to backstop the new debt with its appropriation credit? 
 
LFUCG is considering its options pending responses to the RFP and particularly the credit discussion. 
Based upon discussions with LFUCG their preference would be a standalone LCC credit, but recognizes 
that an annual appropriation or General Obligation lease obligation may be required to obtain the 
required amount of funds and favorable terms in the market place.  

 
5. With respect to the discussion of revenues available for DS in the “Anticipated Future Available 

Revenues” section, can you clarify whether the $14mm number stated as “available for debt service” 
is inclusive of or in addition to the $6.4mm of local transient room tax revenues expected to be 
collected. 

 
6. Per the RFP, we understand that approximately $14mm will be available for debt service. Beyond the 

transient (hotel) tax, do you have any other publicly available information on what comprises the 
$14mm? 

 

7. Can you provide a breakdown of sources of revenue totaling $14 million per year? 
 

8. Can the Corporation provide any additional detail on revenue forecast? 
 

9. Have any revenue forecast studies been undertaken? If so can results be provided. 
 

The $14 million of total revenue expected to be available to pay debt service includes both operating 

revenue (net of expenses) and non-operating revenue.  

 

 

Non-operating revenue is comprised primarily of transient room tax, which is conservatively expected 

to be approximately $6.4 million or greater given recent trends in hotel tax collections and inflated at 3 



 

 

percent once every 5 years. Other non-operating revenues comprise contributions from the LCVB, the 

potential for naming rights etc., which have yet to be finalized with a formal contract.  

 

Operating revenues are largely driven by or related to the use of Rupp Arena by the University of 

Kentucky. Recently, the University of Kentucky and LCC entered into a Letter of Intent (“LOI”) for 

the use of Rupp Arena for a 15-year period beginning in 2018. The proposed amount of the lease under 

the LOI is $6.65 million, which includes base rent of $1.6 million which is to be inflated at 2.4% per 

year. There are additional revenue sharing arrangements between UK and LCC above certain 

thresholds, but those items are not to be considered. The lease has not yet been finalized.  Additional 

operating revenues are generated from concerts, concession, event sales etc., but largely offset by 

operating expenses of the Convention Center, Triangle Park and the Opera House. 

 

A formal revenue forecast will not be undertaken until such time as all revenue streams have been 

validated with a formal contract. For example, there are RFP’s outstanding related to the Lexington 

Convention Center’s naming rights and the potential development of the High Street lot located directly 

across from Rupp Arena. 

 

10. Tax-status: Given the discussion regarding the repurposing of retail space, does LCC anticipate any 
portion of the bond issuance having to be taxable (i.e. for non-public use) or should we assume for 
the purposes of #4 and #8 that the entire issue is tax-exempt? If there is to be a taxable portion, what 
portion would you like us to assume is taxable of the $226.3mm in project funds? 

 
For purposes of the RFP, please assume that the issuance is tax-exempt. The retail space is expected 
to be repurposed for other uses. 

 
11. Cap-I: Does LCC desire interest to be capitalized during construction? If so, what is the anticipated 

construction timeline/what is the anticipated date that capitalized interest should run through? 
 

12. Project Fund: Is there an anticipated draw schedule or would LCC prefer us to assume that the project 
is gross funded for purposes of #4 & #8? 
 
The construction time line is currently unknown and there is no draw schedule available. Please 
assume a gross funded project deposit.  For purposes of the RFP you may also assume that 
construction takes place in two phases over a 36-month time horizon. 
 
LCC will continue to operate Rupp Arena and the Convention Center during construction. With the full 
4 percent transient tax already in place and the expectation for a final long term lease agreement with 
UK before the bonds are sold, there may or may not be a need for capitalized interest depending upon 
your proposed plan of finance. 

 
13. Can you provide current reserve fund balances on hand for the 08A bonds and documentation 

(indenture, term sheets, etc.) for subordinate bank-held bonds for $15mm for Rupp Arena? 
 
14. What is the amortization and terms of the subordinated bank loan?  Is the bank willing to remain in a 

subordinate position to the new debt? 
 

The Series 2008 A Bonds currently have a debt service reserve fund balance of $5.3 million.  
 



 

 

The subordinate bank loan currently pays interest only on a monthly basis and will begin monthly 
amortizing on November 21, 2019. The loan carries an interest rate of 2.75% percent, has a final stated 
maturity of January 11, 2026 and is redeemable at any time. It is unknown if the bank would agree to 
remain in a subordinated position, that would have to be discussed once more information is 
available. Documents related to the subordinate bank bonds will be made available to the selected 
firm.  

 
15. What reserves/cash balances are held by LCC and LCVB and what restrictions are on these reserves? 
 

LCC currently holds $10 million restricted for Convention Center project expenses, representing funds 
provided by LFUCG’s contribution. LCC also has $2 million in unrestricted capital reserves. 
 
LCVB reserves and cash balances are not available and are not to be considered for purposes of your 
response. 

 
16. If a respondent submits to be considered for Senior Manager, will they automatically be considered 

to serve as a co-senior and/or co-manager.   
 

Respondents requesting to be considered for Senior Manager will automatically be considered for co-
senior and/or co-manager. 

17. Please provide the most recent studies / consulting / engineering report, and please provide 
projected revenues / forecasts.  

The most recent publically available study regarding Rupp Arena and the Convention Center was 
prepared by NBBJ in 2013 and can be found on their website. There are no other publically available 
studies or forecast at this time.  

18. Further, are there any impediments that may have existed in the past 30 years that could affect 
construction / operations / debt service payments going forward?  

This question will be addressed at the appropriate time. 

19. Please discuss the legal authorization as known or anticipated.  

The state authorization and LFUCG’s delivery of its $10 million equity contribution through the 
issuance of General Obligation Bonds is referenced in the RFP. Further action will be required by LCC’s 
Board of Directors to enter into a financing/lease agreement with the Kentucky Bond Development 
Corporation, the expected issuer of the bonds, and the passage of an ordinance by LFUCG to enter 
into a General Obligation lease or annual appropriation lease should they choose to backstop the 
bonds.   

20. What is the authorized / anticipated final maturity of the proposed debt?  

See 2 above. 



 

 

21. Please clarify the intent of the LCC to issue debt for this project as it relates to the LFUCG.  What 
proposals / changes to authorizations are anticipated, and how might that affect which entity issues 
or provides a backstop for the bonds?  

See 19 above. 

22. Please clarify the flow of funds for the transient tax revenues, and any segregation of funds that 
exist or may be possible for bondholders. 

Transient room tax is collected by LFUCG and remitted based upon state statutory and local ordinance 
requirements to the various recipients, including the 4 percent transient tax applicable to LCC.  It is 
anticipated that LCC will then transmit those funds to the bond trustee, but the legal structure has yet 
to be determined. 

23. Please clarify what broader basket of funds may be pledged to bondholders, and please note any 
expirations known or anticipated (particularly for leases) relating to tenor or amount / rate. 

See 9 above. 

 


